
1 
 

VILLAGE OF GRAFTON 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

MAY 23, 2012 
 
The Parks and Recreation Board meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by Chair 
Meg Canepa 
 
Members present:  Meg Canepa, Dave Antoine, Joe Hildebrand, Jim Miller and Celia 
Albers 
 
Absent:  Trustee David Liss and Bob Nowak 
 
Staff / Officials present:  Director of Parks and Recreation John Safstrom and 
Administrative Secretary Sheryl Prohuska 
 
Others: Bob Hoffman, Grafton Education Association; Dave Mauer, Grafton Lions Club; 
Erika Lang, 535 Greenfield Drive; Rita Collins, 556 High Knoll Drive, Cedarburg; Jacob 
Wilde and Kevin Collins, Grafton High School students 
 
MINUTES 

Motion by Jim Miller, seconded by Trustee Antoine, to approve the April 
18, 2012 Parks and Recreation Board meeting minutes. Approved 
unanimously.  

 
PERSONS REQUESTING TO BE HEARD 
Erika Lang, a Village Resident for the past 5 years, inquired about the status of two 
tennis courts that were removed due to the construction of the Municipal Services 
Facility.  At the time of their removal, she thought the courts were going to be replaced 
at another location. Ms. Lang stated that except for the Family Aquatic Center, there are 
few amenities available for residents on the north end of the Village and inquired if there 
are future plans for additional tennis courts. 
 
Director Safstrom replied that approximately $80,000 had been allocated for tennis 
courts. The Village began discussions with the School District for a joint effort to add 
additional tennis courts at John Long Middle School. He stated that during the budget 
process, the funds set aside for tennis courts were allocated for other expenditures. 
Unfortunately, joint efforts with the district to add more courts fell apart soon after. 
 
Ms. Lang asked for direction in pursuing the allocation of funding for tennis courts. 
Director Safstrom responded that the budget process begins in August. It was 
suggested she speak with Village Board Trustees and request this item to be placed on 
a future agenda. Trustee Antoine thanked Ms. Lang for attending and told her citizen 
input is important and does make an impact. 
 
 
 



2 
 

GRAFTON LIONS PARK – REQUEST TO REVIEW “NO DOGS” POLICY 
Director Safstrom reported that in response to a request from Trustee Antoine, he 
surveyed neighboring communities regarding their policy regarding dogs in parks. 
Currently, dogs are not allowed in parks in Cedarburg, Port Washington, Saukville, 
Jackson and Hartford. Mequon does allow dogs if they stay on paved pathways and are 
on a leash no longer than 10 feet. 
 
Trustee Antoine stated because Grafton Lions Park is more of a rural park, he thought it 
would be a great place to allow an owner to walk a dog. 
 
It was the general consensus of the Board that they would not have an issue with 
allowing an owner to walk a dog in Grafton Lions Park, as long as the dog is leashed 
and is limited only to Grafton Lions Park.  
 
Director Safstrom stated all parks have signs stating that no dogs are allowed. He 
stated that despite the signs, people continue to bring their dogs to parks. He stated it is 
more of an enforcement issue, however, there have not been many issues in the past 
20 years with the current ordinance of not allowing dogs in parks. Director Safstrom 
cautioned members that opening up one park to dogs may encourage non-residents to 
bring pets. 
 
Jim Miller asked Grafton Lions Member, Dave Mauer, if he or the Lions Club would 
have an objection to allowing dogs in Grafton Lions Park. Mr. Mauer did not feel the 
Club would object to this. He did state that during the past 2 years while the park was 
under construction, neighbors did walk their dogs through the park. While this never 
caused any issues, he did say once you advertise this opportunity, every dog owner 
may want to visit the park.  
 
Jim Miller requested Director Safstrom contact Chief Wenten for his opinion or concerns 
regarding this item. This item will be placed on the Board’s agenda in June.  
 
FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER RENTALS 
Board members reviewed two promotional flyers for the Grafton Family Aquatic Center 
advertising rental of the facility. Director Safstrom stated he would like to offer the water 
slide at no cost when redeeming the flyers. 
 

Motion by Trustee Antoine, seconded by Joe Hildebrand, to approve the 
coupons for Family Aquatic Center rentals for residents and resident 
companies offering free waterslide. Approved unanimously. 

 
SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION – GALA IN THE PARK IN JULY AND AUGUST AT 
VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK 
Board members reviewed a Special Event Application request for the GALA (Grafton 
Area Live Arts) In The Park concert series which takes place on Thursday evenings in 
Veterans Memorial Park beginning July 12 through August 23. 
 
Director Safstrom stated the GALA group has been a respectful user of the park over 
the years and has always cleaned the park after each use. The 2012 permit has been 



3 
 

pre-approved, and this review is a formality since a Special Event Application is now 
required for all community events. 
 
SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION – GRILLIN’ IN GRAFTON ON AUGUST 17 AND 18 
At the April meeting, this item was tabled to allow for a letter to be sent to neighbors of 
Centennial Park informing them of the upcoming Grillin’ In Grafton event that will be 
held in the park on August 17 and 18. 
 
Director Safstrom reported that thirty-one letters were sent out to neighbors. He 
reported he received positive feedback from one resident and did not receive any other 
calls objecting to the event. Director Safstrom stated the event will end at 10:00 p.m. 
both evenings.  
 

Motion by Jim Miller, seconded by Joe Hildebrand, to allow Grillin’ In 
Grafton to be held at Centennial Park on Friday, August 17 and Saturday, 
August 18, 2012. Approved unanimously. 

 
SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION – FOOD TRUCK FESTIVAL ON OCTOBER 20 AT 
VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK 
Board members reviewed a request from the Grafton Education Foundation requesting 
use of Veterans Memorial Park on October 20, 2012, for a Food Truck Festival. 
 
Bob Hoffman, a representative from the Grafton Education Foundation, appeared 
before the Board to answer any questions they may have. His group’s request is for 
approval to use the park and also to allow the waiver of fees. 
 
Director Safstrom stated this is part of a Special Event Application. Some fees will be 
incurred, as the group will need police assistance because of beer sales. 
 
Mr. Hoffman stated the Grafton Education Foundation raises funds in order to offer 
grants to teachers for assistance with classroom expenses that have been cut from the 
budget. Mr. Hoffman stated the group has raised $36,000 in the past 2 years. Mr. 
Hoffmann stated that Food Truck Festivals have been gaining popularity throughout the 
country. The group is looking to possibly have ten trucks that will be located on the east 
side of the street. The road will be accessible to the public. He stated this is a family 
event with children’s games and will feature school district musical entertainment.  
 
Jim Miller asked Mr. Hoffmann for some examples of how the money is used for school 
expenses. Mr. Hoffman replied a lot of funds are used for technology. He stated the 
program also teaches children life skills, such as how to find a place to live, buy a car 
and manage a budget. 
 

Motion by Jim Miller, seconded by Trustee Antoine, to allow the Grafton 
Education Foundation to utilize Veterans Memorial Park on October 20, 
2012, for a Food Truck Festival. Approved unanimously. 

 



4 
 

Director Safstrom stated it is the policy of the Village to waive fees for school district 
functions. Director Safstrom told Mr. Hoffman he will obtain cost estimates for police 
coverage for this event. 
 
BENCHMARK MEASUREMENTS 

Board members had no comments regarding the Department’s monthly benchmarks 
report. 
 
PARK AND OPEN SPACE FUND/PARK AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND 
REPORT 
Board members had no comments regarding the Department’s monthly report.  
 
NEW BUSINESS  
Chair Canepa welcomed new Board Member, Celia Albers. 
 
Celia Albers stated the Senior Friendship Club is planning a 30th anniversary celebration 
in October.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Grafton High School students, Kevin Collins and Jacob Wilde, presented an update to the 
memorial basketball project in Veterans Memorial Park. Final colors for the project were 
presented. The surface for the court will arrive in approximately 2 weeks. A brick walkway 
will be constructed between the court and the road to create a pathway to the court. 
Fundraising efforts are underway for sale of bricks. The project is projected to be complete 
by mid-August depending upon the fundraising efforts. 
 
The cost of the bricks was briefly discussed. Director Safstrom stated there are companies 
that offer assistance in determining how much to charge for fundraising in order to reach 
specific goals. 
 
Trustee Antoine stated this is a great project. Chair Canepa stated she and fellow teacher, 
Gigi Hafemann, have been very impressed with how the students have handled this 
project. Chair Canepa requested that the students provide a monthly update on the 
project.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Jim Miller requested Director Safstrom schedule a park tour with all Board members early 
on a Saturday morning. Director Safstrom stated he will have a date set in time for the 
June meeting. 
 
Director Safstrom asked Board members if budget items should be put on the agenda for 
discussion each month under New Business. Board members agreed and this will be 
done at future meetings. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Dave Mauer, representative from the Grafton Lions Club, thanked the Village and the 
Parks and Recreation Board for allowing the Club to be part of the Grafton Lions Park  
project. Mr. Mauer reported on the success of the park’s grand opening that was held on 



5 
 

May 5. Mr. Mauer presented Chair Canepa and Director Safstrom with a DVD of the 
project. Mr. Mauer stated the club has some funds left and would like to install some trees. 
Director Safstrom will provide Mr. Mauer with a list of trees preferred by the Village. 
 
Mr. Mauer stated a resident in the Bobolink neighborhood expressed interest in donating 
two basketball hoops for the parking lot in Grafton Lions Park. Director Safstrom stated 
the park was originally designed to be a passive park, whereas, no athletic activity would 
take place within the park. Director Safstrom stated hoops were removed from Lime Kiln 
Park because they had interfered with park rentals. Director Safstrom stated he would 
bring up this topic at a future Village Board meeting to get members’ opinions on this 
matter. 
 
Board members thanked Mr. Mauer and the Lions Club for a successful project. 
 
ADJOURN 

Motion by Jim Miller, seconded by Trustee Antoine, to adjourn at 7:04 
p.m.  Approved unanimously. 


